
Downtown Grand Rapids 

Prosperous    Livable    Walkable    Inclusive    Green    Connected    Distinctive 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Downtown Grand Rapids 

Prosperous    Livable    Walkable    Inclusive    Green    Connected    Distinctive 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



           UNAPPROVED MINUTES 
 
 

MEETING OF THE DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
 

June 4, 2014 
 
 
1. Call to Order – The meeting was called to order at 8:31 a.m. by Chair Brian Harris.   
 
2. Attendance            
 

Present:  Kayem Dunn, Dr. Wendy Falb, Jane Gietzen, Brian Harris, Mayor George 
Heartwell, Jim Talen, Rick Winn  
 
Absent: Elissa Hillary 
 
Others Present:  Kristopher Larson (Executive Director), Mary Sierawski (DDA Executive 
Asst/Office Manager), Jana Wallace (DDA Treasurer), Eric Pratt, Tim Kelly, Bill Kirk, Kim 
Van Driel, Mandy Cech (staff), Marcia Warner, Marc Thomas (WOODTV), Pete Daly 
(GRBJ), Jim Harger (MLive), Howard Hansen, Shaun Biel,  and others.  
 

3. Approval of Minutes of May 14, 2014 
 

Motion:  Jane Gietzen, supported by Kayem Dunn, moved approval of the minutes of the May 
14, 2014 DDA meeting as presented.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
4. Authorize Execution of Reimbursement Agreement with Civic Theater  
 

Mr. Pratt presented an areaway reimbursement agreement between the Downtown 
Development Authority and the Grand Rapids Civic Theatre.  The agreement explains the 
terms in which Grand Rapids Civic Theatre will reimburse the DDA for its share of costs 
associated with the vacation of the areaway located in front of their building.  Mr. Pratt said 
authorization for the DDA Executive Director to execute this agreement is requested.  Mr. 
Harris asked if there is a schedule for reimbursement within the agreement.  Mr. Pratt said the 
agreement allows for payment to transpire in two forms, lump sum immediately, or the 
property owner could request payment in installments to last over ten years with interest.  
Mayor Heartwell asked if the construction happening near Veterans Park would involve the 
water lines to be shut off because there is no water in the fountain.  Mr. Pratt said the water 
could have been turned off, but the approval of the areaway agreement wouldn’t compromise 
the Veterans Park completion date.  Mr. Pratt said he can investigate that question for the 
Mayor and will inform him of what he finds.  Mr. Larson said he will follow-up with the Board 
on why the water is shut off and the date of the ribbon cutting for the park.   
 
Motion: Kayem Dunn, supported by Jane Gietzen, moved to approve the DDA Executive 
Director to execute the areaway reimbursement agreement with the Grand Rapids Civic 
Theatre.  Motion carried unanimously.   



Downtown Development Authority 
Minutes – June 4, 2014 
Page 2 
 
 
 
5. Recommend Proposed FY15 Budget/FY 15-19 Priority Plan  
 

Mr. Larson shared with the Board that there was a fortunate discovery on the budget 
spreadsheet yesterday which yielded additional dollars.  This discovery yielded a substantial 
increase in revenues due to an administrative error within the spreadsheet.  Mr. Larson said the 
FY15 budget is reflective of the new DGRI community-based model and that there is a lot of 
demand and stress for every dollar we are able to reinvest within the Downtown.  Mr. Larson 
said the budget process was a four month journey that involved many community members, 
stakeholders, and DGRI Alliance members.  Mr. Larson explained the changes that were 
made on the budget since it was distributed on Monday.   
 
Mr. Larson said that Ms. Wallace would explain the debt tax increment priority plan to the 
Board.  Ms. Wallace said the priority plan includes the proposed FY2015 budget request and 
the FY2016 through FY2019 budget forecasts.  Ms. Wallace said based on the March 2014 
Board of Review taxable values, the DDA’s FY2015 projected tax increment revenues are 
expected to increase little compared to FY2014.  Ms. Wallace explained that property tax 
increment revenues for this fund are captured via the State of Michigan Education Tax 
millage, the Grand Rapids Public Schools millages, and the Kent Intermediate School District 
millages. Ms. Wallace explained refunding bonds.  Mr. Harris asked if the way we refund 
bonds is a tool to smooth out debt.  Ms. Wallace responded yes.  Ms. Wallace explained 
capital appreciation bonds and said the interest rate on the bond increases over time even 
though the principal isn’t paid off at an equal percentage.  Mr. Wendt said the Arena bonds 
had to be issued before the sunset provision and are only secured by the tax revenues through 
the DDA.  Mr. Wendt said if we were ever to be short that we would have to use local tax to 
pay the debt.  Mayor Heartwell pointed out that FY19 would be the last year of debt service 
from the original 94 capital bonds.  Mr. Wendt said the only other instance of using capital 
appreciation bonds was for the convention center.  Mr. Harris requested a spreadsheet 
reflecting the debt budget.  Ms. Wallace said she would share a spreadsheet with the Board.  
Mr. Harris asked about the appeal level and if there is any way to assess our inventory of 
eligible appeal properties and what portion of those eligible properties appeal repeatedly.  Ms. 
Wallace said she is unable to share that information.  Mr. Talen asked if the debt tax priority 
plan shows up in the other two budgets.  Ms. Wallace said by State law they need to remain 
separated.  Ms. Gietzen asked if there are substantial historical records of the DDA and its 
various bonds and motions from the past thirty years.  Mr. Wendt said Ms. Wallace has a 
good handle on the DDA history as well as himself and that there has been good record 
keeping over the years.  Ms. Wallace said within the audits there is historical information.  
Mayor Heartwell asked how much revenue the DDA generates annually.  Ms. Dunn 
responded that it’s around 12M, minus 7M to pay debt, so that the annual budget is around 
5M.  Mr. Harris thanked Ms. Wallace for her work on the priority plan.   
 



Downtown Development Authority 
Minutes – June 4, 2014 
Page 3 
 

Mr. Larson explained the difference between the local tax and non-tax budgets and said that 
non-tax dollars have fewer restrictions.  Mr. Larson said following an action today, DGRI staff 
will present each of the fiduciary Boards’ recommended budgets to the City Commission, 
requesting bottom-line appropriation. After receiving the City Commission appropriation, the 
fiduciary Boards will each adopt their final annual budgets and priority plans at their next 
scheduled meeting times.  Mr. Larson introduced DGRI staff and said that they would be 
highlighting each of their Alliances projects for FY15 that are present within the non-tax 
budget.   
 
Mr. Kelly, staff to the Alliance for Investment (AFI), said that some highlights from the AFI 
are projects including: the Downtown Plan, Downtown speaker series, Veterans Park, parklets, 
activating the public realm, and access to the Grand River.   
 
Mr. Kirk, staff to the Alliance for Livability (AFL), said that some highlights from the AFL are 
projects including: accessibility, mobility and connectivity, bike share feasibility study, 
wayfinding signs that reflect times to walk instead of distance, public space activation, urban 
recreation, including a trailhead, stakeholder engagement, Resident’s Council, and finding 
ways to use the Downtown as an educational tool and create more educational partnerships.   
 
Ms. Cech, staff to the Alliance for Vibrancy (AFV), said that some highlights from the AFV 
are projects including: Movies in the Park, holiday décor, marketing and events within the 
Downtown, public space activation, Downtown workforce program, and a special events 
training program.   
 
Mr. Larson thanked DGRI staff for their work.  Ms. Dunn said she sees the Safety 
Ambassador program as an important program for the Downtown and would like to see it 
continue.  Mr. Larson said the Downtown Improvement District (DID) could be a contributor 
to the program after the next assessment and he is hopeful when the new DID assessments 
are authorized, they can become a contributing partner to this program.  Mr. Winn asked if 
the new street tax affects the DDA’s contributions towards street improvements.  Mr. Larson 
said the DDA has street projects currently in place on the priority plan, but that the way the 
DDA supports streets may change as the oversight committee for the streets tax determines 
the plan for the funds.  Ideally, the DDA would use the funds for embellished sidewalks, 
beautification, or projects of that nature.  Mayor Heartwell said the City is approaching the 
appointment of an oversight committee which will establish the use of the street tax funds.  
City staff is also developing a fifteen year asset management plan and the City ought to be in 
a place now where they can maintain the streets and sidewalks and the DDA funds would 
primarily be used for streetscape enhancements.  Ms. Gietzen asked when the oversight 
committee will be established.  Mayor Heartwell replied that the funds do not get captured 
until August 2015, but a plan is currently being worked on to establish at least the next three 
years of planning.  Mr. Winn asked about the non-tax fund and asked if we think we are front 
loading some significant expenses that may hurt us in the future and asked if there are any 
ways we can increase revenues in the non-tax fund.  Mr. Larson said the DDA has obtained 



Downtown Development Authority 
Minutes – June 4, 2014 
Page 4 
 

Area 5, and upon the sale of that land, additional revenues would be produced in addition to 
the revenues that would be produced from the disposition of other lands.  Mr. Winn asked 
how DGRI plans to market the Downtown.  Mr. Larson said that in regards to marketing, 
there are a lot of areas for improvement.  Mr. Larson said DGRI inherited marketing from the 
Downtown Alliance, but ultimately we have had to start from zero.  Currently, DGRI has a 
brand identity, but a lot of work is needed on the web environment, mobile app, banner 
campaigns, advertising, and just general promotion of the Downtown within the region.  Mr. 
Harris asked if the current staffing and operations is at max capacity in regards to the non-tax 
fund resources.  Mr. Larson said staff is at capacity currently.  Mr. Harris expressed full 
confidence of the content and vision of the DGRI staff and said they have done a great job of 
giving the Board a balanced budget presentation.  Mr. Talen said the County is a significant 
contributor to the revenue side of this equation and not such a receiver on the disbursement 
side.  Mr. Talen said there’s a difference of opinion in how some of the non-tax portion of the 
budget should be spent.  Mr. Talen said the Board should think about how it does things to 
keep it out of the litigation arena and find ways to recognize the County’s contribution as the 
Board moves forward and also recognize the State Association of Counties and Kent County.  
Mr. Harris thanked Mr. Talen for bringing this point of view to the Board and said he hasn’t 
heard any constructive action ideas offered, but that he’s open to ideas on ways the Board 
could take actions to demonstrate that the Board is sensitive and responsible with the use of 
funds.  Mr. Harris said we could take a look at the projects of the past two years and say that it 
has benefited the region as a whole, including the County.  Mr. Harris said Mr. Larson and 
legal counsel are working with legislation on what a well-run DDA looks like.  Mr. Harris asked 
for a report on these discussions from Mr. Larson in the future.  Mr. Larson added that the 
local tax side of the budget has fostered 4 billion dollars of investment since the creation of 
the DDA, since then the County’s SEV has increased over 200%.   
 
Ms. Gietzen said one thing she has seen since the creation of DGRI is a concern for all 
residents of the City and the County, including education.  Ms. Gietzen has never felt more 
represented in those issues and she’s baffled by Mr. Talen’s comments that what the DDA is 
doing doesn’t benefit the County because many of the users of the Downtown are residents 
of the County.  Mr. Harris said many of the DDA’s critics who don’t feel represented perhaps 
can be more educated on the programs that are offered.  Mr. Harris said the Board should put 
a placeholder on this conversation.  Mr. Harris said the DDA has significant reserve and into 
the future years the Board will need to determine how to manage that fund balance in the 
most efficient and best way possible.   
 
Motion: Mayor George Heartwell, supported by Jane Gietzen, moved to recommend the FY15 
Budget Summary to the Grand Rapids City Commission and request fund appropriation.  Motion 
carried unanimously.   
 
 
 

 



Downtown Development Authority 
Minutes – June 4, 2014 
Page 5 
 
6.     Report from DGRI President and CEO  
 
MNTIFA (6/4) 

• Will consider MNTIFA Budget 
 

DID (6/2) 
• Will consider FY15 DID Budget 
• Will establish quarterly meeting dates for remainder of 2014 

 
DDA (5/23) / (6/4) 

• Approved event support requests 
• Authorized entering into MOU with City for Downtown / River Edges Plan 
• FY15 Budget presentations / approvals 
• Civic Theater Relocation Agreement 

 
DGRI Board of Advisors (5/23) 

• Approved 18 new Alliance appointments  
• Approved Attendance policy 
• Discussed endorsement policy 

 
CITY 

• Launched panhandling education program and introduced ordinance restricting panhandling 
in conjunction with Heartside Neighborhood Collaboration Project, City Manager and City 
Attorney 

• Approved MOU with DGRI regarding Downtown & River Corridor Planning projects 
 
 
Alliances:  
 

VIBRANCY (5/19) 
 

• Chair: Dr. David Rosen, Citizen Extraordinaire 
• Advising on the Special Events Optimization Process 
• Approved FY15 budget recommendations 
• Advising on State of the Downtown event planning 

 
LIVABILITY (5/27) 
 

• Chair: Lynee Wells, Principal @ Williams & Works 
• Assisting in the formation of a unified Downtown residential association 
• Reconvened the Bicycle Working Group to identify FY15 priorities 
• Approved FY15 Budget recommendations 



Downtown Development Authority 
Minutes – June 4, 2014 
Page 6 
 
 

INVESTMENT (5/13) 
 

• Chair: Nikos Monoyios, Long Range Planner @ The Rapid  
• Approved FY15 Budget recommendations 
• Advising on the Downtown Plan process 
• Received updates on planning efforts also underway that might impact Downtown 

 
DGRI Staff Highlights 
 

• Preparing for June 6 kickoff to 2014 Movies in the Park! 
• Hosted the IDA Midwest Urban District Forum conference May 5 & 6 
• Hosted a Merchant Mixer event April 16th, 6-8 PM @ DGRI 
• Accepted a one-year extension for the option on Area 5 
• Closed on Area 1 for Arena Place 
• Synthesizing results from Special Events Optimization Process focus groups  
• Continuing legislative advocacy regarding protecting DDA act 
• Launched “Real Change not Spare Change” collaboration effort 
• Planning for State of the Downtown June 26, 2014 – Mosaic Space 
• Designing FY14 Annual Report 
• Working with businesses to design first parklets  
• Held second Downtown Plan steering committee meeting May 8th 
• Preparing for launch of Grandwich 2014 

 
 
7. Public Comment 
  

None. 
 
8.  Board Member Discussion 
 
 Ms. Dunn shared an update on the Downtown Market.  Dr. Falb said she would appreciate 

Mr. Larson giving the Board an update on the advocacy efforts in Lansing.        
 
9. Adjournment 
 

The meeting adjourned at 10:02 a.m. 

















05/30/2014 Downtown Development Authority
2:17 p.m. Debt Tax Increment Fund Only

Proposed FY2015 Revenue and Appropriation Request and FY2016 - 2019 Forecasts

Prepared - May 30, 2014

Cost Center :  7050DEBT FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2015-19

Table 1 - Projected Revenue Budget YTD Actual 
1

Estimate Budget Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast TOTAL NOTES

402001/003 Property Tax Increment 
2

7,514,281$  7,512,260$  7,407,717$  7,529,127$  7,303,253$  7,084,156$  7,119,576$  7,155,174$  36,191,286$  FY16-17 est (3.0%) decline then 0.50% growth

402002/006 Prior Year Tax Increment Adjustments (200,000)      (240,294)      (350,000)      (200,000)      (100,000)      (50,000)        (30,000)        (30,000)        (410,000)        Reimbursemts and appeal adjustments

665001 Interest 15,000         4,426           9,000           10,000         10,000         10,000         10,000         10,000         50,000           Interest earned from Debt Service Reserve Fund

TOTAL PROJECTED REVENUE AS AMENDED 7,329,281$  7,276,392$  7,066,717$  7,339,127$  7,213,253$  7,044,156$  7,099,576$  7,135,174$  35,831,286$  

Table 2 - Committed Expenditures - Investment

9910/9950 Debt service - 1993 Museum Parking Ramp Final debt service payment due 01/01/2014

Principal 265,000       265,000       265,000       -               -               -               -               -               -                 

Interest 7,075           6,625           6,625           -               -               -               -               -               -                 Budget included $450 paying agent fee

9910/9950 Debt service - 1994 Van Andel Arena CAB Bonds Final debt service payment due 06/01/2019

Principal 929,047       -               929,047       921,247       857,487       789,572       734,601       144,554       3,447,461      

Interest 2,785,953    -               2,785,953    3,073,753    3,137,513    3,205,428    3,260,399    700,446       13,377,539    

9910/9950 Debt service - 2009 Van Andel Arena Refunding Final debt service payment due 05/01/2024

Principal -               -               -               -               -               330,000       345,000       3,510,000    4,185,000      First principal payment on 05/01/2017

Interest 1,484,525    1,484,525    1,484,525    1,484,525    1,484,525    1,484,525    1,471,325    1,456,663    7,381,563      

8800 Estimate of Maximum Capture to be Returned 
3

1,842,681    1,427,973    1,753,866    1,849,602    1,723,728    1,224,631    1,278,251    1,313,511    7,389,723      Excess revenue returned to State, GRPS, & KISD

TOTAL PROJECTED EXPENDITURES 7,314,281$  3,184,123$  7,225,016$  7,329,127$  7,203,253$  7,034,156$  7,089,576$  7,125,174$  35,781,286$  

Table 3 - Excess / (Deficit) of Revenues Over Expenses

Fund Balance - Beginning 3,363,791$  3,363,791$  3,363,791$  3,205,492$  3,215,492$  3,225,492$  3,235,492$  3,245,492$  3,205,492$    

Plus:  Projected Revenue 7,329,281    7,276,392    7,066,717    7,339,127    7,213,253    7,044,156    7,099,576    7,135,174    35,831,286    

Less:  Committed Expenditures/Payments (7,314,281)   (3,184,123)   (7,225,016)   (7,329,127)   (7,203,253)   (7,034,156)   (7,089,576)   (7,125,174)   (35,781,286)   

Fund Balance - Ending 3,378,791$  7,456,060$  3,205,492$  3,215,492$  3,225,492$  3,235,492$  3,245,492$  3,255,492$  3,255,492$    

Note 1 - Actual data as of April 30, 2014

Note 2 - FY2015 revenues estimated using March Board of Review taxable values and estimated 2014 millage rates.  

Note 3 - the DDA may only capture school millage-related property tax increment revenue in amounts sufficient to support eligible obligations existing prior to January 1, 1995 and for refunding bonds related to those eligible obligations.

dda15priorplan.xls jmw 05302014

FY2014



Downtown Development Authority
Local Tax Increment Only

Proposed FY2015 Revenue and Appropriation Request and FY2016 - 2019 Forecasts 

Prepared June 3, 2014

FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2015-19

Table 1 - Projected Revenue Budget YTD Actual
 1

Estimate Budget Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast TOTAL NOTES

Local Tax Increment 3,962,583$   3,892,348$   3,867,348$   4,237,009$   4,109,899$   3,986,602$   4,006,535$   4,026,567$   20,366,612$  Estimating (3.0%) declines then 0.50% growth

Public Transit Millage Increment 384,350        384,350        384,350        385,681        374,111        362,887        364,702        366,525        1,853,906      Estimating (3.0%) declines then 0.50% growth

Sub-Total Tax Increment Revenues 4,346,933$   4,276,698$   4,251,698$   4,622,690$   4,484,009$   4,349,489$   4,371,236$   4,393,093$   22,220,517$  

Rebates to City of Grand Rapids and ITP (126,050)       (119,676)       (119,676)       (278,682)       (267,535)       (259,509)       (260,806)       (262,110)       (1,328,642)     ITP & City rebates were 5% then 10% beginning FY15

Prior Year Tax Increment Adjustments (50,000)         (156,260)       (240,000)       (100,000)       (100,000)       (50,000)         (50,000)         (50,000)         (350,000)        Adjustments due to appeals.

Sub-Total Tax Increment Revenues - Net 4,170,883$   4,000,762$   3,892,022$   4,244,008$   4,116,475$   4,039,980$   4,060,430$   4,080,982$   20,541,876$  

Interest 40,687          (28,423)         35,000          50,644          52,047          102,057        127,181        198,541        530,470         Estimated 1.0% to 2.0% interest rates

Brownfield Redevelopmt Auth Reimbs - Grandville Ave 21,542          20,440          21,542          21,973          21,094          20,461          20,563          20,666          104,758         Custer STI-capture maxed out after 2012/FY2013

Brownfield Redevelopmt Auth Reimbs - Veterans Park -                -                -                -                -                500,000        260,000        100,000        860,000         BRA-Fitzgerald tir reimbursemts for eligible costs

Grant - State of Michigan - Cherry Street -                21,146          21,146          -                -                -                -                -                -                 Project reimbursement via City Engineering Dept

Grant - U.S. Dept of Commerce - Seward Avenue -                511,909        511,909        -                -                -                -                -                -                 Project reimbursement via City Engineering Dept

Reimb - Consumers Energy - Monroe Center Ph 3 -                75,561          75,561          -                -                -                -                -                -                 Project reimbursement

Reimb - State of Michigan - U.S. 131 Off Ramp -                19,691          19,691          -                -                -                -                -                -                 Project reimbursement via City Engineering Dept

Miscellaneous Reimbursements & Fees 10,000          26,026          28,000          10,000          10,000          10,000          10,000          10,000          50,000           Bid packet fees, incentive applications, etc

TOTAL PROJECTED REVENUE AS AMENDED 4,243,112$   4,647,112$   4,604,871$   4,326,625$   4,199,615$   4,672,498$   4,478,175$   4,410,190$   22,087,103$  

Table 2 - Administration

General Administration 800,000        743,179        800,000        825,000        849,750        875,243        901,500        928,545        4,380,037      Overhead, staff, professional services, city costs, etc.

City of GR Legacy Costs -                -                -                37,863          37,863          37,863          37,863          37,863          189,313         Share of former DDA employees' legacy costs

Sub-Total Administration 800,000$      743,179$      800,000$      862,863$      887,613$      913,105$      939,362$      966,407$      4,569,350$    

Table 3 - Debt Service for Bond Issues

Series 2003B/2013B CCBA Bonds - DeVos Place 83,806          36,246          83,806          333,700        333,650        328,550        327,100        327,100        1,650,100      Debt matures 02/01/2023

Series 2008 KCDC Bonds - Floodwall Refunding 50,044          50,044          50,044          50,151          50,891          51,437          51,537          16,032          220,048         Debt matures 11/30/2020

Series 2012A BRDA Bonds - Ionia South of Wealthy 75,000          75,000          75,000          75,000          75,000          75,000          75,000          75,000          375,000         Debt matures 06/01/2032

Sub-Total Debt Service 208,850$      161,290$      208,850$      458,851$      459,541$      454,987$      453,637$      418,132$      2,245,148$    

Table 4 - Project Expenditures:  Committed and Planned

Investment:  Development Incentive Programs

Areaway Removal Incentive Program 35,000          -                -                35,000          35,000          35,000          35,000          35,000          175,000         Support for areaway abandonment

Building Re-Use Incentive Program 500,000        221,584        275,000        250,000        250,000        250,000        250,000        250,000        1,250,000      Past & current commitments for building re-use

Project Tax Increment Reimbursements 810,000        815,675        820,000        750,000        750,000        500,000        500,000        500,000        3,000,000      Riverhouse, JW Marriott, Hopson Flats, et al

Streetscape Improvement Incentive Program 50,000          -                -                50,000          35,000          35,000          35,000          35,000          190,000         Partial support for enhancements

Sub-Total Development Incentives 1,395,000$   1,037,259$   1,095,000$   1,085,000$   1,070,000$   820,000$      820,000$      820,000$      4,615,000$    

Investment:  Planning

Downtown Plan 225,000$      1,441$          125,000$      350,000$      12,500$        -$              -$              -$              362,500$       New land use / strategic investment plan

Investment:  Public Infrastructure

Arena South Implementation 125,000        30,809          30,809          -                200,000        -                -                -                200,000         Ottawa extension design / construction

Bostwick Avenue - Lyon St to Crescent St -                -                -                50,000          175,000        -                -                -                225,000         Local match pre-BRT reconstruction

Bridge Street Streetscape / US 131 Underpass 75,000          -                -                125,000        -                -                -                -                125,000         Pedestrian and streetscape design / improvements

Grand Rapids / Indiana Railroad Bridge Painting / Rehab 716,952        376,214        716,952        -                -                -                -                -                -                 DDA share of $1.2 mm project

Grand River Activation 100,000        -                -                100,000        -                -                -                -                100,000         Advance Frmwrk Plan priority

Ionia Avenue 9 - Buckley to Wealthy 325,000        121,016        250,000        -                -                -                -                -                -                 Local match for Downtown Market streetscape

Jefferson Avenue - Cherry St to Fulton St 395,000        230,363        250,000        -                -                -                -                -                -                 DDA share of $2,215,000 for non-transit work

Michigan / Ottawa Gateway -                -                -                -                -                -                -                300,000        300,000         Soften intersection w/landscaping/pedestrian improvs

Monroe Avenue Resurfacing - Louis to 196 -                -                -                165,000        -                -                -                -                165,000         Rotomill and re-surface street

Monroe Center - Phase 3 / Monument Park 575,000        811,103        875,000        -                -                -                -                -                -                 Improve outdated park / pedestrian area

FY2014



Ottawa Ave. Public Improvements -                -                -                200,000        130,000        -                -                -                330,000         Public Improvements associated with Arena Place

Sixth Street Bridge Capital Repairs -                2,935            2,935            -                -                -                -                -                -                 Final charges from MDOT

State Street - Jefferson Ave to Lafayette Ave 50,000          -                -                50,000          400,000        -                -                -                450,000         DDA share of $1,060,000 project

Veterans Park Improvements -                -                -                100,000        -                -                -                -                100,000         Construct new park designed by VMP Comm

Wealthy Street - US 131 to Division Ave -                -                -                -                -                -                885,000        -                885,000         DDA share of $2.65M for approach to US 131

Weston Street - Sheldon to LaGrave Ave. -                -                -                100,000        100,000        -                -                -                200,000         

Sub-Total Public Infrastructure 2,361,952$   1,572,440$   2,125,696$   890,000$      1,005,000$   -$              885,000$      300,000$      3,080,000$    

Investment:  ITP Millage Funded Transit-Related Investments

Amtrak Station Re-Location 800,000        746,164        750,000        50,000          -                -                -                -                50,000           Contribute towards new station costs

DASH North Shuttles Lease 75,000          37,500          75,000          75,000          -                -                -                -                75,000           DASH service from Monroe N area to main downtown

Jefferson Avenue - Cherry Street to Fulton Street 353,000        353,000        353,000        -                -                -                -                -                -                 Additional match needed for street pre-BRT

Sub-Total Transit-Related 1,228,000$   1,136,664$   1,178,000$   125,000$      -$              -$              -$              -$              125,000$       

Livability

Accessibility and Mobility Repairs 10,000          9,850            9,850            10,000          10,000          10,000          10,000          10,000          50,000           Repairs related to findings of FY2007 audit

Bicycle Friendly Improvements 105,000        50,119          101,000        100,000        50,000          50,000          50,000          50,000          300,000         Local FY14 match - $50k for $400k State grant

Downtown Census -                -                -                30,000          -                -                -                -                30,000           Build exhaustive demographic census of residential base

Gateway Signage 20,000          -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                 Signing siting, design, & fabrication 

Public Realm Improvements -                -                -                200,000        -                -                -                -                200,000         Physical embellishments to public spaces

Riverwalk Wayfinding Sign System 15,000          -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                 Places of interest and mile markers

Seward Avenue Non-Motorized Facility 56,730          7,295            45,000          -                -                -                -                -                -                 Local match for $952k bike facility, trail, & striping

Skywalk Wayfinding Sign Improvements 50,000          -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                 Directional signage for skywalk users

Snowmelt System Capital Repairs 25,000          81,602          95,000          100,000        25,000          25,000          -                -                150,000         Electrical and alarm improvements

Urban Recreation Improvements 65,000          291               1,000            150,000        50,000          25,000          25,000          25,000          275,000         Riverwalk running course, drinking fountains, etc.

Wayfinding System Improvements -                -                -                110,000        100,000        100,000        -                -                310,000         

Sub-Total Livability 346,730$      149,157$      251,850$      700,000$      235,000$      210,000$      85,000$        85,000$        1,315,000$    

TOTAL PROJECT EXPENDITURES AS AMENDED 5,556,682$   3,896,961$   4,775,546$   3,150,000$   2,322,500$   1,030,000$   1,790,000$   1,205,000$   9,497,500$    

Table 4 - Excess / (Deficit) of Revenues Over Expenses

Fund Balance - Beginning 3,542,979$   3,542,979$   3,542,979$   2,363,454$   2,218,366$   2,748,327$   5,022,733$   6,317,908$   2,363,454$    

Plus:  Projected Revenue 4,243,112     4,647,112     4,604,871     4,326,625     4,199,615     4,672,498     4,478,175     4,410,190     22,087,103    

Less:  Administration and Debt Service (1,008,850)    (904,469)       (1,008,850)    (1,321,714)    (1,347,154)    (1,368,092)    (1,392,999)    (1,384,539)    (6,814,498)     

Less:  Project Expenditures (5,556,682)    (3,896,961)    (4,775,546)    (3,150,000)    (2,322,500)    (1,030,000)    (1,790,000)    (1,205,000)    (9,497,500)     

Fund Balance - Ending 1,220,559$   3,388,661$   2,363,454$   2,218,366$   2,748,327$   5,022,733$   6,317,908$   8,138,559$   8,138,559$    

Note 1:  Actual revenues thru 5/19/14.  Actual expenditures thru 4/30/2014. dda15priorplan.xls jmw 06032014 927 pm



Downtown Development Authority
Non-Tax Fund Only
Proposed FY2015 Revenue and Appropriation Request and FY2016 - 2019 Forecasts

Prepared June 3, 2014

FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2015-19

Table 1 - Projected Revenue Budget YTD Actual 
1

Estimate Budget Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast TOTAL NOTES

Property Rental - Parking Lots 355,000$     279,834$      333,589$     336,925$     340,294$     343,697$     347,134$     350,605$     1,718,656$  25% of gross beginning FY2014

Property Rental - Winter Avenue Building 9,000           -                9,000           9,000           8,000           -               -               -               17,000         Leased to Downtown Alliance / DID

Property Rental - YMCA Parking Lot 52,000         42,250          50,700         52,000         53,000         54,000         55,000         56,000         270,000       Use of the original DASH 8 lot 

Areaway Special Assessment (3) 15,000         1,547            1,547           15,000         15,000         15,000         15,000         15,000         75,000         City View, Mel Trotter, Touchstone

Interest on Investments 29,665         401               25,000         18,747         8,618           9,110           5,758           8,736           50,968         Estimated interest rates @ 0.5% to 1.5%

Interest on The Gallery Promissory Note 40,448         -                40,448         40,167         38,761         36,567         33,979         30,323         179,797       4.5% simple interest. 1st principal 04/01/15

Sale of Area 1 Parking Lot -               -                2,051,451    -               -               -               -               -               -               Property sold for private development project

Miscellaneous -               -                -               500              515              530              546              563              2,655           Fees, reimbursements, etc.

TOTAL PROJECTED REVENUE 501,113$     324,032$      2,511,735$  472,339$     464,188$     458,904$     457,417$     461,227$     2,314,075$  

Table 2 - Committed and Planned Expenditures

Investment - Planning and Infrastructure

Purchase Area 5 Parking Lot -               -               -              2,051,451    -               -               -               -               2,051,451    Acquire Area 5 for future development

Debt Service Related to Area 5 Purchase -               -               -              -               185,997       180,683       175,369       170,054       712,103       Principal/interest for Area 5 acquisition

Downtown Speaker Series 30,000         19,923          29,923         35,000         15,000         -               -               -               50,000         Events featuring city-building experts

Sub-Total Investment 30,000         19,923          29,923         2,086,451    200,997       180,683       175,369       170,054       2,813,554    

Livability

Division Avenue Task Force Implementation 15,000         -                -               5,000           5,000           -               -               -               10,000         Implementation of Task Force findings

Downtown Recreational Walk / Tour Signage -               -                -               25,000         15,000         -               -               -               40,000         Signage to improve walking

Downtown Safety Ambassador Program 300,000       132,716        225,000       300,000       300,000       175,000       -               -               775,000       Hospitality and Safety Program

Educational Partnerships Initiatives -               -                -               10,000         10,000         -               -               -               20,000         Growing partnerships to increase awareness

Project and Fixed Asset Maintenance 50,000         2,650            5,000           100,000       50,000         50,000         50,000         50,000         300,000       Asset maintenance not budgeted elsewhere

Riverwalk Maintenance 60,000         -                -               60,000         10,000         10,000         10,000         10,000         100,000       Walkway repairs and maintenance

Stakeholder Engagement Programs 5,000           3,149            5,000           5,000           5,000           5,000           -               -               15,000         Constituency-directed engagement 

Street Trees Maintenance Program 10,000         -                -               5,000           5,000           5,000           -               -               15,000         Watering / tending trees within the district

Transportation Demand Mnmt Program 85,000         104               80,000         92,500         92,500         92,500         -               -               277,500       Enabling mobility options

Winter Avenue Building 2,500           -                -               2,500           2,500           2,500           2,500           2,500           12,500         Maintenance and repairs

Sub-Total Livability 527,500       138,619        315,000       605,000       495,000       340,000       62,500         62,500         1,565,000    

Vibrancy

Bridge Lighting Operations 10,000         -                -               10,000         10,000         10,000         10,000         10,000         50,000         Electricity and maintenance for lighting

DGRI Event Production 25,000         24,580          30,000         45,000         35,000         20,000         -               -               100,000       DGRI-produced events, i.e. Movies in the Park

Diversity / Inclusion Programming 10,000         3,600            4,000           10,000         10,000         10,000         -               -               30,000         Increase Downtown awareness to new audiences

Downtown Marketing 200,000       26,637          100,000       225,000       150,000       150,000       -               -               525,000       Tools to promote and market Downtown

Downtown Workforce Program 15,000         -                -               15,000         15,000         15,000         -               -               45,000         Engaging the Downtown workforce

Go-Site Visitor Center at GRAM -               -                -               30,000         30,000         30,000         -               -               90,000         Support for visitor engagement center

Holiday Décor Program 50,000         44,927          45,000         60,000         25,000         25,000         -               -               110,000       Adorning Downtown for the holiday season

Major Event Sponsorship 80,000         86,350          86,350         82,000         57,000         57,000         -               -               196,000       Artprize, LaughFest, Restaurant Week

Project-Related / Administration 1,500           2,863            2,863           1,500           1,500           1,500           1,500           1,500           7,500           Legal fees and other miscellaneous

Public Space Activation -               -                -               30,000         20,000         20,000         -               -               70,000         Buskers, murals, & other enlivening interventions

Rosa Parks Circle Ice Skating Support 42,000         -                42,000         42,000         42,000         42,000         42,000         42,000         210,000       Skate rink operations

Special Events - Grant Programs 50,000         20,000          40,000         50,000         50,000         50,000         -               -               150,000       Support for new & emerging events

Special Events - Office of 100,000       75,580          100,000       100,000       75,000         75,000         75,000         75,000         400,000       Partial support for special events mnmt

Special Events Training Program -               -                -               5,000           5,000           -               -               -               10,000         Workshops to assist and train event producers

State of the Dntn Event & Annual Report 17,500         -                17,500         22,500         22,500         22,500         -               -               67,500         Spotlighting DGRI and Downtown Progress

Ticketed Events - Police Services 80,000         56,666          75,000         80,000         80,000         -               -               -               160,000       Pedestrian safety - Arena & DeVos Place

Sub-Total Vibrancy 681,000       341,203        542,713       808,000       628,000       528,000       128,500       128,500       2,221,000    

FY2014



Miscellaneous Projects

DDA Offices Re-Location 50,000         110,304        120,000       -               -               -               -               -               -               Move out of City Hall to 29 Pearl St NW

Miscellaneous - to be determined 100,000       23,400          40,000         100,000       75,000         75,000         75,000         75,000         400,000       Available for emerging ideas and opportunities

Sub-Total Miscellaneous 150,000       133,704        160,000       100,000       75,000         75,000         75,000         75,000         400,000       

TOTAL PROJECTED EXPENDITURES 1,388,500$  633,449$      1,047,636$  3,599,451$  1,398,997$  1,123,683$  441,369$     436,054$     6,999,554$  

Table 3 - Excess / (Deficit) of Revenues Over Expenses

Fund Balance - Beginning 3,895,731$  3,895,731$   3,895,731$  5,359,830$  2,232,718$  1,297,909$  633,130$     649,178$     5,359,830$  

Plus:  Projected Revenue 501,113       324,032        2,511,735    472,339       464,188       458,904       457,417       461,227       2,314,075    

Less:  Committed & Planned Expenditures (1,388,500)   (633,449)       (1,047,636)   (3,599,451)   (1,398,997)   (1,123,683)   (441,369)      (436,054)      (6,999,554)   

Ending Fund Balance - Before Reserve 3,008,344$  3,586,314$   5,359,830$  2,232,718$  1,297,909$  633,130$     649,178$     674,351$     674,351$     

Reserve for Brownfield 2012A Bonds (500,144)      (500,144)       (500,144)      (514,748)      (530,584)      (530,637)      (531,071)      (531,071)      (531,071)      Per Downtown Market Repayment Agreement

Ending Fund Balance - With Reserve 2,508,200$  3,086,170$   4,859,686$  1,717,970$  767,324$     102,493$     118,107$     143,280$     143,280$     

Note 1 - Actual data as of April 30, 2014 dda15priorplan.xls jmw 06032014 927 pm





Ferris Coffee and Nut
20130305 5 21 2013

© 2013 Integrated Architecture  All rights reserved  No part of this document may be used or reproduced in any form or by any means, or stored in a database or retrieval system, without the prior written permission of Integrated Architecture 

1site plan
scale

0' 50' 100' 200'

N

3,300 sf
existing
office
retail
production
warehouse facility

445 sf

warehouse support
addition

warehouse addition

warehouse addition

7,365 sf

~148’ x 50’

32’ x 14’70’ x ~45’

w i n t e r  a v e n u e

s u m m e r  a v e n u e

s e w a r d  a v e n u e

bridge s t r e e t

d o u g l a s  s t r e e t

b l u m
r i c h  s t r e e t

1040.69’

2.773 acres

YMCA

dash lot

dash lot

dash lot

Zoned
Transitional Neighborhoods - Transitional City Center

604.88’

161.37’

315.07’

81.51’



Ferris Coffee and Nut
20130305 5 21 2013

© 2013 Integrated Architecture  All rights reserved  No part of this document may be used or reproduced in any form or by any means, or stored in a database or retrieval system, without the prior written permission of Integrated Architecture 

2plan - elevations

east

north

scale

0' 20' 40' 80'

N

addition

addition

addition
445 sf

3,300 sf

7360 sf

existing warehouse

existing distribution

railroad tracks

winter avenue nw

existing production

existing cafe

existing office

addition dashed

addition dashedaddition dashed addition dashed

~148’ x 50’

32’ x 14’
70’ x ~45’

future grade door



Ferris Coffee and Nut
20130305 5 21 2013

© 2013 Integrated Architecture  All rights reserved  No part of this document may be used or reproduced in any form or by any means, or stored in a database or retrieval system, without the prior written permission of Integrated Architecture 

3level 1 plan north detail 
scale

0' 10' 20' 40'

N

clearstory windows

future grade door

existing clearstory windows

restroom

shipping
receiving
office

vestibule

entry4 relocated grade doors

4 relocated docks

existing warehouse new warehouse

addition
additionaddition

parking

employee entry

445 sf

3,300 sf
7360 sf

new
dock

new
dock

existing
docks

new
dock

~148’ x 50’32’ x 14’

70’ x ~45’



Ferris Coffee and Nut
20130305 5 21 2013

© 2013 Integrated Architecture  All rights reserved  No part of this document may be used or reproduced in any form or by any means, or stored in a database or retrieval system, without the prior written permission of Integrated Architecture 

4elevations

scale

0' 10' 20' 40'

N

addition dashed addition dashed

addition dashed

future grade door

east



Ferris Coffee and Nut
20130305 5 21 2013

© 2013 Integrated Architecture  All rights reserved  No part of this document may be used or reproduced in any form or by any means, or stored in a database or retrieval system, without the prior written permission of Integrated Architecture 

5east aerial  - massing model
additions in blue

28’

addition
addition

addition



Ferris Coffee and Nut
20130305 5 21 2013

© 2013 Integrated Architecture  All rights reserved  No part of this document may be used or reproduced in any form or by any means, or stored in a database or retrieval system, without the prior written permission of Integrated Architecture 

6level 1 plan north detail 
scale

0' 10' 20' 40'

N

clearstory windows

future grade door

existing clearstory windows

restroom

shipping
receiving
office

vestibule

entry4 relocated grade doors

4 relocated docks

existing warehouse new warehouse

addition
additionaddition

parking

employee entry

445 sf

3,300 sf
7360 sf

new
dock

new
dock

existing
docks

new
dock

~148’ x 50’32’ x 14’

70’ x ~45’























 
 
 
 
DATE: July 3, 2014 
 
TO: Kristopher Larson, AICP 

 Downtown Development Authority 
 Executive Director 
 
FROM:  Mark A. De Clercq, P.E., City Engineer 

 
SUBJECT: Maintenance of the Downtown Wayfinding and Parking 

Facilities Signage System 

This project consists of maintenance of the Downtown Development Authority’s unified 
Wayfinding and Parking Facilities Signage System in the City of Grand Rapids downtown 
core which consists of: downtown gateway or ‘welcome’ signs; non-illuminated district, local 
and MDOT vehicular directional signs; non-illuminated pedestrian map kiosks; illuminated 
and non-illuminated parking facility identification signs; and portable DASH shuttle bus-stop 
signs. The scope of this project is the ongoing maintenance of this system, including: repair of 
sign damage, weathering, vandalism, etc.; revision of sign messaging, destinations, routes, 
map inserts, etc.; on-call emergency pickup of downed signs; short-term storage and 
reinstallation of downed signs; provision and stockpiling of sign components; fabrication and 
installation of new signs and foundations, and an annual inspection/assessment/report of sign 

system condition. The term of the contract would be for three (3) years. 

Bids were received on May 28, 2014, by the City Engineer’s Office on behalf of the 
Downtown Development Authority (DDA).  The Consultant’s (Williams & Works, Inc. – W & 
W) estimate is $260,000, and Valley City Sign Company (Valley City) submitted a bid of 
$246,647.60 (discounted bid same as bid).  Reference the attached Equal Business 
Opportunity – Construction Worksheet regarding the applicable bid discounts for this project.  

Valley City does not anticipate utilizing subcontractors on this project.  

The estimated total expenditures of $388,000.00 required, includes the costs of the 
construction contract, W & W previously authorized design phase services including 
reimbursable expenses and subconsultant services, W & W’s construction phase services 
including reimbursable expenses and subconsultant services, administration, and an 
approximate twelve percent allowance for contingencies, are being financed by the DDA 

($320,000.00) and the City’s Capital Improvement Fund ($68,000.00).  

It is recommended that the construction contract for this project be awarded to Valley City in 
the amount of $246,647.60, with total expenditures not to exceed $388,000.00, that the 
Executive Director of the DDA be authorized to execute said contract contingent upon 
review/approval by the DDA’s special counsel, and that the DDA approve its share of costs in 
the amount of $388,000.00.  Further, it is recommended that staff (City Engineer’s Office and 
the Executive Director of the DDA) be authorized to negotiate/execute any necessary 
changes in the scope of work, within the total authorized not-to-exceed expenditures, as the 
project proceeds through construction. W & W will provide the construction phase services 

pursuant to their agreement for said services with the City. 

 



It is anticipated that this project will be presented to the City Commission on July 8, 2014, for 
authorization of total expenditures in an estimated amount of $388,000.00 for this project and 
to authorize the City’s share of costs.  The City’s authorization of project costs will be 
contingent upon the DDA’s approval of the construction contract and authorization of their 

share of costs for the project.  

MAD/RDV/em 

cc: Greg Sundstrom      
 Eric DeLong      
 James Hurt      
 Chris Zull 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T:CD\CD14\DDA\Wayfinding 
070914 #14025  



 

 

 

 
SUMMARY OF ESTIMATED COSTS 

 
for 

 
Maintenance of the Downtown Wayfinding and Parking Facilities Signage System 

    
    
    

Project Funding Source(s)    

 
Currently  
Approved 

Budget  
Requests 

Revised  
Project  

Estimate 
    

Downtown Development Authority $121,800.00 $198,200.00 $320,000.00 
Parking Services Fund 68,000 0 68,000.00 

Total Project Sources $158,000 $39,000 $388,000.00 

    
Breakdown of Project Uses   

    
Construction Contract   $246,647.60 
Willaims & Works’ (W & W) Previously 
Authorized Design Phase Services, 
including Reimbursable Expenses and 
Subconsultant Services   11,800.00 
W & W’s Construction Phase Services, 
including Reimbursable Expenses and 
Subconsultant Services   71,500.00 
Administration   16,497.40 

    
Sub-Total   $346,455.00 
    
Contingencies (12%)   41,545.00 

    
Total Project Uses   $388,000.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T:CD\CD14\DDA\Wayfinding  
070914 #14025 







Maintenance of the Downtown WAYFINDING
AND PARKING FACILITIES SIGNAGE SYSTEM
T:\14025\1SR-Bid Documents\14025 Bidtab.xlsx

Bids Rec'd 05.28.14 at 11:00 a.m. at the City Engineer's Office

ITEM

NO. ITEM UNIT QUAN UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL

1 1st Year Subtotal from Bidder's Worksheet* Lump Sum 1 83,502.00$         83,502.00$          74,721.00$       $         74,721.00  $    126,327.08  $       126,327.08 
2 2nd Year Subtotal from Bidder's Worksheet* Lump Sum 1 90,031.50$         90,031.50$          98,554.80$       $         98,554.80  $    151,945.20  $       151,945.20 
3 3rd Year Subtotal from Bidder's Worksheet* Lump Sum 1 85,522.50$         85,522.50$          73,371.80$       $         73,371.80  $    133,392.60  $       133,392.60 

Original Bid Amount (TOTAL) 259,056.00$        246,647.60$        411,664.88$        
Allowable Discount Points 0.0 0.0

Allowable Discount Amount -$                     -$                     
DISCOUNTED BID 246,647.60$        411,664.88$        

Discounted BID Ranking 1 2
*Bid has been 
deemed non-
responsive

*BRITTEN DÉCOR

ERECTORS INC

ENGINEER'S

ESTIMATE

VALLEY CITY

SIGN COMPANY

CITY SIGN 

Page 1 of 1



 

 
 
 
5/30/14 
 
 
Force Account Rate Schedule 
 
Labor billing rates: 
 $78.00 – straight time 
 $117.00 – overtime 
 $156.00 – holiday/Sunday rates 
 
The hourly, daily, weekly and monthly rates to be applied to non-rental 
equipment utilized is included on our $78.00 bill rate 
 
Percentage markup for subcontracted services – 6% 
 
Percentage markup for materials – 20% 
 
Percentage markup for rental equipment – 20% 



jstaal
Typewritten Text
$2400.00 before mark up

jstaal
Typewritten Text











 
 
DATE: July 3, 2014 
 
TO: Kristopher Larson, AICP 
 Downtown Development Authority 
 Executive Director 
 
FROM:  Mark A. De Clercq, P.E., City Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Resurfacing of Burton Street from Plymouth Avenue to 

Breton Avenue; Fuller Avenue from Malta Street to Leonard 
Street; Michigan Street from Lafayette Avenue to College 

Avenue and Monroe Avenue from Louis Street to I-196

The above-captioned project generally consists of the rotomilling and resurfacing of Burton 

Street, Fuller Avenue, Michigan Street and Monroe Avenue within the limits noted above. 

The Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) received bids for this project on June 6, 
2014.  The Engineer’s estimate is $1,801,254.69 and Michigan Paving and Materials 
Company submitted the low bid of $1,712,640.05. The updated estimated total expenditures 
($2,174,316) required for this project, includes the construction contract, testing/permits, 
Traffic Safety force account work, engineering/inspection/administration, and an allowance for 
contingencies (5%). This project is being financed by a combination of MDOT grant funds 
($1,182,316), Streets Capital Fund ($830,000) and Downtown Development Authority 

($162,000).   

The Downtown Development Authority’s share of costs is for the local and non-participating 
share of cost to rotomill/resurface Monroe Avenue from Louis Street to Michigan Street. The 
cost also includes the City’s Street Lighting force account work to change out two cobra head 

light fixtures to historical fixtures in the block between Lyon Street and Pearl Street.  

It is recommended that the Downtown Development Authority approve its share of costs in 
the amount of $162,000.  At the City Commission’s meeting on May 20, 2014 (Commission 
Proceeding No. 83519), the City approved the agreement with MDOT and the authorized total 
expenditures in an amount not to exceed $1,176,100 for the local share of costs for this 
project.  The revised summary of costs includes the updated information on the costs based 
on actual bids received and reduces the estimated shares of costs. The approval of the 
agreement and the authorization of expenditures was contingent upon approval by the 

Downtown Development Authority of its share of costs for the Project. 

MAD/RDV/BWS/em 

cc: Greg Sundstrom      
 Eric DeLong      
 James Hurt      

 Chris Zull 

T:\CD14\DDA\Monroe – Louis to I-196   
070914  #13027  

 



 

 

 

 
SUMMARY OF ESTIMATED COSTS 

 
for 

 
Resurfacing of Burton Street from Plymouth Avenue to Breton Avenue; Fuller 

Avenue from Malta Street to Leonard Street; Michigan Street from Lafayette Avenue 
to College Avenue and Monroe Avenue from Louis Street to I-196 

 
 
 
Project Funding Source(s) 

  
Currently  
Approved 

Budget  
Request(s) 

 Revised  
 Project  

 Estimate 
    
Federal Grant Share (MDOT) $1,182,316   $0 $1,182,316 
Streets Capital Fund 705,000 125,000 830,000 
Downtown Development Authority 0 162,000 162,000 

Total Project Sources $1,887,316 $287,000 $2,174,316 

    
Breakdown of Project Uses 

    
Construction Contract    $1,712,640.05 
Testing/Permits   41,500.00 
Traffic Safety Force Account Work   46,000.00 
Engineering/Inspection/Administration   273,621.00 

    
Sub-Total   $2,073,761.05 
    
Contingencies (5%)   100,554.95 

    
Total Project Uses   $2,174,316.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T:\CD14\DDA\ Monroe – Louis to I-196 
070914  #13027 

 





 
 

 
Reframing the traditional information center to  

fully engage an integrated 21st century audience. 
 

A	  high	  profile,	  warm	  and	  welcoming	  space	  at	  the	  northwest	  corner	  of	  the	  Art	  Museum	  
on	  Rosa	  Parks	  Circle	  will	  beckon	  both	  the	  intentional	  visitors	  and	  the	  casual	  passersby.	  
Inside	  they	  will	  find	  a	  helpful	  concierge	  to	  the	  city,	  a	  smiling	  new	  friend	  trained	  as	  a	  
certified	  tourism	  ambassador,	  to	  help	  them	  explore	  their	  options	  and	  discover	  new	  
ideas	  of	  things	  to	  see	  and	  do.	  They’ll	  have	  the	  latest	  tools	  and	  digital	  access,	  along	  with	  
traditional	  paper	  maps	  and	  brochures.	  They’ll	  watch	  monitors	  scrolling	  with	  
information,	  real	  time	  social	  media	  suggestions,	  calendar	  of	  events,	  and	  visual	  images	  of	  
the	  diverse	  offerings	  of	  the	  city.	  They’ll	  meet	  the	  people	  of	  Grand	  Rapids	  through	  a	  
group	  of	  “virtual”	  community	  liaisons	  who	  will	  tweet	  their	  weekly	  picks,	  and	  join	  in	  fun	  
activities	  such	  as	  riddles	  and	  games	  that	  send	  them	  to	  community	  businesses	  that	  they	  
may	  have	  never	  been	  to	  before.	  As	  an	  information-‐gathering	  hub,	  they’ll	  be	  able	  to	  
share	  their	  own	  ideas	  about	  Grand	  Rapids	  through	  the	  GoSite’s	  social	  media	  and	  on-‐site	  
feedback	  stations.	  They’ll	  find	  a	  comfortable	  place	  to	  meet	  up	  with	  friends,	  try	  free	  
samples	  of	  local	  delicacies,	  join	  a	  tour,	  or	  maybe	  catch	  a	  mini-‐performance	  by	  one	  of	  the	  
many	  cultural	  organizations	  in	  the	  city.	  They’ll	  get	  to	  know	  our	  city,	  its	  history	  and	  
character,	  the	  movers	  and	  shakers	  of	  the	  town,	  and	  the	  visions	  for	  the	  future.	  Most	  of	  
all,	  they	  will	  see	  the	  big	  picture,	  the	  many	  wonderful	  things	  that	  make	  Grand	  Rapids	  a	  
great	  place	  to	  live,	  work,	  and	  play–the	  GoSite	  will	  help	  them	  be	  a	  part	  of	  it	  all.	  
	  
On	  behalf	  of	  the	  GoSite	  Coalition,	  GRAM	  requests	  annual	  support	  from	  the	  Downtown	  
Development	  Authority	  starting	  July	  1,	  2014.	  Funds	  from	  the	  DDA	  would	  be	  targeted	  
specifically	  towards	  marketing	  the	  GoSite	  as	  the	  “first-‐stop	  downtown”	  destination	  and	  
promotion	  of	  special	  programming	  (such	  as	  FridayFreeBites,	  short	  “sampler”	  
performances	  by	  local	  cultural	  organizations,	  and	  the	  many	  other	  downtown	  events).	  
DDA	  funding	  would	  also	  underwrite	  ten	  community	  liaisons	  who	  will	  upload	  videos,	  
tweet	  “best	  bets,”	  and	  build	  a	  conversation	  between	  the	  central	  business	  district	  and	  
the	  corners	  of	  the	  city.	  	  	  
	  
	   	  

GoSite 
 



	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
The	  GoSite	  has	  already	  gained	  momentum	  and	  community	  support.	  Steelcase	  Inc.	  is	  
assisting	  with	  the	  space	  design	  team	  and	  unique	  furnishings	  for	  the	  project;	  a	  capacity-‐
building	  and	  planning	  grant	  was	  awarded	  from	  Dyer-‐Ives	  Foundation;	  three	  year	  support	  
was	  granted	  from	  the	  Wege	  Foundation;	  and	  Experience	  Grand	  Rapids	  will	  provide	  
additional	  annual	  funding.	  A	  proposal	  has	  been	  submitted	  to	  the	  Frey	  Foundation,	  with	  
positive	  feedback	  during	  due	  diligence	  conversations	  as	  we	  plan	  for	  future	  review,	  and	  
we	  continue	  to	  evaluate	  additional	  foundation,	  state,	  and	  federal	  sources.	  The	  GoSite	  
Business	  Sponsor	  program	  is	  in	  development	  to	  underwrite	  ongoing	  operations.	  
	  
The	  GoSite	  will	  open	  a	  “Pop	  Up”	  in	  the	  space	  in	  late	  July	  to	  introduce	  the	  concept	  and	  
provide	  an	  opportunity	  for	  feedback	  during	  the	  planning	  and	  implementation	  process,	  
with	  plans	  for	  a	  full	  launch	  later	  in	  the	  year.	  
	  
Placemaking	  and	  building-‐community	  are	  integral	  to	  the	  growth	  and	  prosperity	  of	  
Grand	  Rapids,	  and	  there	  are	  individuals,	  groups,	  businesses,	  and	  organizations	  working	  
passionately	  every	  day	  to	  contribute	  to	  the	  effort	  representing	  myriad	  demographics,	  
goals,	  and	  missions.	  Now	  is	  the	  time	  to	  make	  a	  place	  that	  connects	  them	  all,	  one	  that	  
uses	  technology	  as	  well	  as	  traditional	  methods	  to	  make	  things	  inviting	  and	  easy	  to	  find,	  
a	  place	  to	  share	  information	  in	  person	  and	  through	  social	  media,	  to	  participate	  with	  
content	  and	  programming,	  and	  to	  encourage	  visitors,	  locals,	  students,	  potential	  new	  
talent,	  and	  others	  to	  get	  to	  know	  Grand	  Rapids	  and	  each	  other	  better;	  to	  come	  
downtown,	  to	  mingle,	  mix,	  discover,	  and	  explore	  more.	  
	  
Initial	  members	  of	  the	  GoSite	  Coalition	  are	  the	  Grand	  Rapids	  Art	  Museum	  (GRAM),	  
Experience	  Grand	  Rapids,	  Downtown	  Grand	  Rapids	  Inc.,	  Arena	  District,	  and	  Grand	  
Rapids	  Cultural	  Marketing	  Group.	  GRAM	  will	  oversee	  operations	  of	  the	  GoSite	  with	  
assistance	  from	  an	  Advisory	  Council,	  consisting	  of	  members	  of	  the	  Coalition,	  and	  an	  
Inclusion	  Committee,	  with	  over	  17	  community	  representatives	  from	  diverse	  
backgrounds	  and	  interests.	  
	  
Thank	  you	  for	  your	  time	  and	  consideration	  of	  this	  proposal.	  The	  GoSite	  is	  a	  
multifaceted,	  collaborative	  approach	  to	  building	  a	  centralized	  information	  sharing	  space	  
unique	  to	  Grand	  Rapids,	  where	  entrepreneurship	  and	  working	  together	  go	  hand	  in	  
hand.	  



101 Monroe Center
Grand Rapids, MI 49503

GRAM GoSite Steelcase has provided a drawing and specification that best meets the criteria submitted. 
It should be understood that all solutions are subject to interpretation and thereby require
dealer review and final approval.  This includes but is not limited to product numbers,
finishes, locks, grommet locations, and overall design intent.  Consistent with Steelcase’s
policy, the authorized dealer is ultimately responsible for the accuracy of this specification,
proper installation and verifying that any/all acknowledgements match the specification.

© 2013 Steelcase Inc

Date: 5.16.14
Designer: akc



A
D

A
 counter

video tour stations
(sound)

lounge area

pillars of the
community

printer touchscreen
station

reception

pillars of the
community

(4) large monitors
on wall

STAIR

S10

DW

E5

outdoor seating

iPad stations

outside facing
monitors

brochure/general
storage

recycling
center

D
L

A
W

R
F254836

CO2511

CO2511

CQCT1632

27
/4

8

C
O

C
ZD

25
48

27

CATLG

416911

CO2511

27/48

COCZD254827

CO2511

27/72

COCZD257227

C
O

2518

COEL400UPH

C
O

2518

M
C

/32

C
O

C
C

D
303219

CATL
G

41
69

11

FPAC1CC

D
L

D
L

D
L

D
L

KSK-K

G
E

S
TU

R
E

G
E

S
TU

R
E

KSK-K

GESTURE

G
E

S
TU

R
E

G
E

S
TU

R
E

11
/5

5

S
C

20/22

48/48-E
X

T

48
/4

8

LC
D

S
S24/54

S
S

S
S

24/72

S
S

CANT

C
S

/12/48

C
S

/1
2/

48

30/42s

24/42

24/42

24
/4

2

36/4836/48

16/36

Steelcase has provided a drawing and specification that best meets the criteria submitted. 
It should be understood that all solutions are subject to interpretation and thereby require
dealer review and final approval.  This includes but is not limited to product numbers,
finishes, locks, grommet locations, and overall design intent.  Consistent with Steelcase’s
policy, the authorized dealer is ultimately responsible for the accuracy of this specification,
proper installation and verifying that any/all acknowledgements match the specification.

© 2013 Steelcase Inc

GRAM GoSite
101 Monroe Center
Grand Rapids, MI 49503

Date: 5.16.14
Designer: akc

Emu Pattern
Chair

Emu Pattern
Table

Regard

Exponents Credenza

i2i chair

Inspirational Pillars of the Community

FrameOne

Gesture

Media:scape Kiosk

















 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 



 
 

 



 
 

 



 
 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 


	Downtown Development Authority Agenda
	DDA Minutes
	Financial Reports
	Statement A - Balance Sheet
	Statement B - Comparison of Budget vs Actual
	Statement C - Current Project Expenses
	Statement D - Summary of Expenditures

	Untitled
	Untitled
	Untitled
	Untitled
	Executive Director's Report

	topmostSubform[0]: 
	Page3[0]: 
	TextField1[0]: Kent Home Services                                              Concrete repair

	Page5[0]: 
	TextField1[0]: Century Foundry
	TextField1[1]: Base assembly  12B
	TextField1[2]: $17,500.00
	TextField1[3]: Pannier
	TextField1[4]: Kiosk maps    2I, 6G, 7G, 8E, 9E
	TextField1[5]: $3888.00
	TextField1[6]: Carrier & Gable
	TextField1[7]: post break away systems 14A
	TextField1[8]: $1086.00
	TextField1[9]: Carrier & Gable
	TextField1[10]: post break away systems 14B
	TextField1[11]: $501.00
	TextField1[12]: 
	TextField1[13]: 
	TextField1[14]: 
	TextField1[15]: 
	TextField1[16]: 
	TextField1[17]: 
	TextField1[18]: 
	TextField1[19]: 
	TextField1[20]: 
	TextField1[21]: 
	TextField1[22]: 
	TextField1[23]: 




